1

| Hope City Council Meeting July 9th, 2025

Mayor Fred French started the July 9th, 2025, regular council meeting at 6:00pm
and led the council in the pledge of allegiance.

The Mayor asked me to do roll call, it showed the following present: Daniel
Schwindt, Robin Moniz, Randy Walker and Chris Border. Ginger Stewart came
in late.

Previous Meeting Minutes: Mayor French said the next item of business is the
minutes from the previous meeting. Daniel Schwindt made a motion to approve
the previous minutes for June 11", 2025. Chris Border seconded the motion, and
the motion passed 4-0.

Treasurers Report: Heather said that there is nothing to exciting on the report this
month. She explained that we had been talking about the fact that the sewer fund
IS not gaining any money and again this month it did not gain. Heather said that it
Is something that we noticed. | said that it had only been two months since we
increased the rates and we might have to give it some time to see if it starts
gaining. Heather suggested maybe we look into what is being spent out of that
account also. Ginger Stewart came in. Daniel Schwindt asked about approving the
appropriation ordinance before approving the treasurers report. | said that we
should probably do the appropriation ordinance first.

Appropriation Ordinance: Robin Moniz said she had a question about that, so on
the bobcat, the roller do we not get to vote on that? The Mayor explained that it
was discussed when the bobcat was bought that the city would purchase
attachments. He said that it had been talked about and maybe she wasn’t here
when it happened. Mayor French said why did we buy the bobcat, so we could fix
our streets, with the assumption we would be buying attachments for it. Robin
Moniz explained she thought every attachment would have to come through us to
be approved. The Mayor said that he was sorry and that he would be sure to keep
Robin in the loop, he asked if there were any other questions. Does that answer
everybody’s questions? He asked Daniel if he remembered that conversation,
Daniel said he did but not all the specifics, but he said he remembered the
conversation. Daniel Schwindt made a motion to approve appropriation ordinance
#1166. Randy Walker seconded the motion. Robin Moniz dissented, and the
motion passed 4-1.

Treasurers Report: Mayor French asked if everyone was ok with the financial
statement. Daniel Schwindt said if there are no more questions about the financial
statement, he would make a motion to approve the financial statement for June
2025, Ginger Stewart seconded the motion. The motion carried 5-0.



2

| Hope City Council Meeting July 9th, 2025

New Business: The Mayor said next is new business. He said that Rebecca
Longnecker turned in a building permit to put up a carport over their camper,
right next to the garage. | said it came at the last minute and that was why it
wasn’t on the agenda. Mayor French said he talked to her on Monday, and he
went and looked at it, he said it is a tin roof with aluminum sides anchored to the
garage. Randy Walker motioned to approve the building permit. Daniel Schwindt
seconded the motion, and it passed 5-0. Mayor French said next is RNR rate for
the budget. I explained that Heather and | had put some numbers together, |
entered it into the state template, and it came in higher than what the county had,
and the rate would be 53.901. Daniel Schwindt said isn’t this how it is usually, it
Is pretty normal for it to go up, it has in past years. Daniel asked if it is what we
normally go up each year. | said that it was close to what we typically go up.
Heather explained that it really didn’t go up alot from last year that we added to it.
It was just that we noticed that prices are going up on everything, so we had to.
Heather said if we had to raise things we would have done it slowly. She said that
we try to anticipate increases for different things that the city needs to take care of
each year. She said we go up just enough that we have everything covered. Ginger
Stewart made a motion to forward the notice of intent to exceed the revenue
neutral rate to the county clerk. Randy Walker seconded the motion. The motion
passed 5-0. The Mayor asked if Pat had some things he wanted to follow up from
last month’s meeting. Pat said that he had a list of things that needed to be
addressed and will need to be taken care of. He said the cleaning of the valve
boxes so the water can be shut off if there is a water leak. He explained that you
can’t get to them because of the sand when they bore has worked up over the top
of the valves. Pat said you’ll either have to hire it done with a hydrovac, but they
need to be fixed, he said it probably won’t be cheap, but it needs to get done. Pat
explained that he had a list of things that were going to be a cost to the city, but
they need to be addressed right away. He said rip rap rock for the sewer ponds, he
said Johnny brought it up that it is washing out, so we need rock to put back on
there. He said that is something that KDHE requires. He said that it is something
important and needs to get done. Pat said that Ginger brought up at the last
meeting that the water and the odor and flavor of the water, he said so everyone
knows we don’t treat the water, he said the only thing that we will do is put
chlorine if the chlorine residual drops low enough and we aren’t getting enough
from Herington. Ginger asked if the water test showed anything, he answered no.
Pat said because KDHE wants the water loss metered, he suggested that the city
purchase a water meter to keep track of the water loss. He asked if we had
received a quote from Core and Main, | said yes, we did it was $1,701.00 for the
meter. He said the meter goes right on the hydrant and it will allow Johnny to
dump that water then he can check his chlorine residual. Pat explained that they



3

| Hope City Council Meeting July 9th, 2025

will set up a schedule where we pretty much drain the tower because when you
fill it, it pushes the old water up to the top of the tower. He said that this should
have been addressed after the city put in the new water system because there are
parts of the city that still have old lines and parts that have new lines there was
never a map made with both the new and the old maps like there should have
been. So, there is not a map of the entire water system with both of the new and
old maps. He said that is something that really needs to get done. Pat said his last
one, he said five years ago was when the new water system was done. He said he
was told that there was a total of ten water meter pits that needed to be done so
they could be read with the rest of the ones in town and they are still not done. He
said let me rephrase that when he came to work, he put five of them in and there
were still four left. Pat said another deal is some of them can’t even be locked out
if you would need to shut them off. Pat said he would suggest to get someone that
does that type of work for the ones on the Northside of the road because of the
fiberoptic cables. There was a conversation between Mayor French, Pat and the
Council about the list of projects the City needs to address. Daniel Schwindt made
a motion for the City to get a plan together, multiple bids if necessary to do the
work described by Pat today. Randy Walker seconded the motion. The motion
passed 5-0. I asked if the council was planning to make a motion for the meter to
measure the water loss when they move the water in the system. Daniel Schwindt
made a motion to buy a metering device from Core and Main. Ginger Stewart
seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.

Mayors Discussion: Mayor French said that we have a call into Salina Waste trash
service, he said that M & K trash service contract is coming up at the end of the
year. He said that the trash truck is destroying the streets, he comes in loaded and
drives on the edge of the streets. The Mayor said that we were checking into the
options before signing another three-year contract to see if anybody else can
compete. So, we thought we could check into some prices and see if they are even
in the same ballpark. He explained that it is expensive to fix the streets, and
Johnny had fixed a spot on the street and one week later it was destroyed by the
trash truck. He said that is why we made the call to check on the prices. There
was a discussion between the Mayor and Council. No action was taken. The
Mayor asked if Johnny had anything to say, if he needed anything, parts, tools, or
anything for the skid steer. He said that he needs that rock for the sewer ponds.
Johnny said that he also needs tires for the city truck. The Mayor said to get an
appointment with John and get some tires on the truck, because you can’t drive a
truck with flat tires.



4

| Hope City Council Meeting July 9th, 2025

Clerk’s Update: Looked up the Cross Connection Control Ordinance that was
passed and approved in 1989. Emailed it to Daniel to review. Visited with James
Andrew’s about doing the plumbing for the new generator out at the pumphouse.
Went to the bank and moved the two CD’s into the 7-month special CD’s as
motioned during the meeting. Met with Heather and put together the numbers for
the 2026 budget. Then I started entering the information in the state template. |
called the Kansas Rural Water Association to sign Pat and Johnny up for some
classes. Pat will receive the required credits for his water and wastewater
certification and Johnny will be in training. Talked with Fred about a sewer issue
behind the three businesses on Main Street. Because all three businesses sewer
lines are connected and then go to the main sewer line it caused a mess. We called
James Andrew to do an emergency dig to find out what the problem was. He found
the problem and Johnny was able to locate the line with his new locator. The way it
had been repaired previously was not correct. Then I went to Abilene and got the
parts James asked for to repair the line correctly.

The Mayor asked if anyone had anything else. Daniel Schwindt said the cross-
connection ordinance he had sent it to Chris Border and that he had also sent it to
the fire department. Daniel said that he had shared what the City could easily offer
without having to juggle KDHE requirements and things like that. Daniel said we
would be willing to run two-inch plumbing into the station, he said he shared that
with Chad, Chad responded that would create more concerns and that it was a
danger to fill on top of the trucks. Daniel said he took it that his offer was
unacceptable to Chad. He said that is where he left the conversation, he told Chad
he would share that with everyone on the council and see what happened next.
Daniel said in the absence of a counteroffer or in the absence of another alternative
that is the extent that he was going to take it. Daniel said he told Chad he would
share it, and he did. He said he wasn’t trying to shut down any questions of
discussions that was just where he was with the situation. Robin Moniz asked Chad
what his thoughts were. Chad asked if he was allowed to talk. Mayor French said
you can speak Chad. Chad Lorson said to elaborate on what Daniel said as far as
the fire department is concerned to bring water inside of the fire station, he said he
knows that there is a high flow 2" meter stuck in out by the road, he said he
understands that. He said his problems with that are several different items. One,
Kansas State Fire Marshall Office and Kansas State Fire Fighters Association does



5

| Hope City Council Meeting July 9th, 2025

not want you climbing around on top of the truck because it is a fall hazard. Two, if
you are climbing around on the top of a truck there has to be walking platforms on
the truck, there has to be fall protection and stuff like that according to OSHA.
That is a whole hell of a lot more expense on top of what this project is talking
about. Too you bring a two-inch line into the station like you are asking, I come
back from a big fire and all my trucks are empty, a two-inch line does not flow
very much water, just my tender alone if its empty its 3000 gallons. There was a
conversation between the Mayor, Chad, Council and Certified Water Operator.
Daniel Schwindt explained that Chad would need to demonstrate that there is a
citywide benefit for the city to go to all that trouble. The Mayor said he did not
think there would be a benefit and there were several other projects the city needs
to get done. Chad left. No action was taken. Mayor French asked if anybody else
had anything. Mayor French said that he would be willing to have another
conversation with Chad, and that cooler heads prevail. He said he feels like the
council doesn’t talk to each other or to him like they used to and that he would like
the sneaking around behind each other’s backs to stop. He said they need to come
together as a group and to do what is best for the community.

Chris Border made amotion to adjourn, Randy Walker seconded the motion. The
motion carried 4-0.

Fred French, Mayor

Attested:

Joni Rikard, Clerk




